Wormwood Scrubs

Charitable Trust Committee
Agenda

Tuesday 18 March 2025 at 6.30 pm
Online - Virtual Meeting

Watch live on YouTube: youtube.com/hammersmithandfulham

MEMBERSHIP

Administration

Councillor Alex Sanderson (Chair)
Councillor Bora Kwon
Councillor Dominic Stanton

Co-optees

Stephen Waley-Cohen
Faye Thomas

CONTACT OFFICER: Amrita White
Committee Coordinator
@: 07741234765
E-mail: amrita.white@Ibhf.gov.uk

Date Issued: 10 March 2025
Date Updated: 14 March 2025



https://www.youtube.com/hammersmithandfulham

Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Committee

N - =
. .|,,,
3

Agenda - 18 March 2025

Pages
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item,
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any
other significant interest which they consider should be declared in the
public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless itis a
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature
of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or
as soon as it becomes apparent.

At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, give
evidence or answer questions about the matter. The Councillor must
then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is
discussed and any vote taken.

Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration.
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest.

Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a

dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Audit, Pensions
and Standards Committee.

MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 3-16
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 4" December 2024.

MANAGER'S REPORT 17 -39

DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING
The next meeting is due to take place on 18" June 2025.



Agenda Iltem 3

Wormwood Scrubs
Charitable Trust Committee

Minutes

Wednesday 4 December 2024
PRESENT

Committee members: Councillors Alex Sanderson (Chair), Bora Kwon and
Dominic Stanton

Co-opted members: Faye Thomas and Stephen Waley-Cohen

Advisors to the Trust: Osama EI-Amin (Trust Manager), Victoria Abel, Simon Ingyon,
Mark Raisbeck and Nick Falcone, Alfie Kerrigan, lan Baron, Magdalena Niedzwiedz and
Kellie Gooch

Clerk: Tiffany Yip

External

Stuart McKay (MHA)

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

No apologies for absence were received.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

3. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING

Matters arising:

List of Actions from the Previous Meeting

Responding to Faye Thomas’ (Co-opted Member) request for the statistics on fly
tipping incidents around Braybrook Street, Osama EIl-Amin (Trust Manager) noted
that the information was circulated to Committee members in March.

He reported that a Trust bank account had been opened, thanking Nick Falcone
(Advisor to the Trust) for his work. Updates on the Linford Christie capital
programme and the learning initiatives would be given in the manager’s report.

Regarding the state of the willow tree on the northwest corner of the Scrubs, verbal
confirmation had been received from HS2 that they would not be felling the tree.
Officers were awaiting written confirmation and working closely with HS2 to ensure
that any traffic diversion work would avoid any roots of trees.

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 3



In response to the Committee’s question on recharges from other contract LOT’s
relating to the use of the ground’s maintenance depot, Osama EI-Amin explained
that it would rely on having some capital improvement in the depot area, which was
also contingent on the Linford Christie capital programme. As part of the
Programme work, the retaining wall on the western side of the depot would need to
be demolished, and the space within the depot needed to be reoriented to improve
the welfare facilities for the staff working there. That required a better partnership
with Idverde and all users of the depot area contributing to improving the facilities.

Osama EI-Amin noted that the update on redesigning the Braybrook play area
would be given in the manager's report. Answering Faye Thomas’ (Co-opted
Member) question of whether the vehicular access point width restriction on
Wulfstan Street would be kept, HS2 had confirmed that the restriction would
remain the same and would not be impacted by any closures or diversions of Old
Oak Common Lane.

RESOLVED
The minutes of the meeting held on 6™ March 2024 were agreed as an accurate
record.

4, ANNUAL REPORT AND STATEMENTS OF ACCOUNTS 2023-24

Nick Falcone (Advisor to the Trust) presented the Trust's Statements of Accounts
2023-24, highlighting the following:

e The Trust delivered a financial surplus of £675,347, including £350,000
of income from the Kensington Aldridge Academy lease.

e The non-routine maintenance costs were low.

e The Trust had general unrestricted reserves just over £2.1 million, of
which £1.4 million was designated for future capital maintenance works
as set out in the Reserves policy, which would go towards the Linford
Christie Stadium and the long-term maintenance of the Alternative
Ecological Mitigation (AEM) Masterplan.

e The Trust’s fixed assets revaluation reserve was valued at a historic £5
million, with other land and buildings on the site valued at a nominal
value of £1.

Stuart McKay (MHA) introduced the Audit Findings Report, which used a risk-
based approach to identify the significant risks that would be assessed. The
materiality benchmark was around £30,000. There was no severe internal control
risks identified. There was only one advisory recommendation regarding the risk
register which suggested the best practice would be attaching risk owners to the
risks identified and making it clear who would be managing the risk and how. No
adjusting misstatements were identified.

Stephen Waley-Cohen (Co-opted Member) noted that it would be better to refer to
Faye Thomas (Co-opted Member) and him as Trustees on page 4 of the Annual
Report. He suggested that recent developments regarding the planning application
to Old Oak and Park Royal Development Corporation (OPDC) should be
mentioned in the annual report as well. Simon Ingyon (Advisor to the Trust)
explained that the report was referring to the 2023-24 financial year only. Stuart
McKay added that events after the reporting period could be included if deemed
necessary by the Trust. Stephen Waley-Cohen (Co-opted Member) also suggested

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 4



that the awarding of the Green Flag award should be mentioned in the report. Nick
Falcone agreed that those amendments would be made.

ACTION: Nick Falcone

Simon Ingyon pointed out a typo in the report to the Committee, noting that it had
nothing to do with the Statement of Accounts or the Audit Report.

ACTION: Nick Falcone

RESOLVED
The Committee:

1.

2.

3.

Approved the Trustee’s Annual Report (including the Trust’'s Reserves
policy), attached as Appendix A.

Approved the 2023/24 financial accounts for Wormwood Scrubs Charitable
Trust (“the Trust”), incorporated as part of the Annual Report.

Approved the management representation letter (attached as Appendix C).
Noted the contents of the annual risk assessment (contained in the
Trustee’s report on pages 18-19).

Noted that the accounts remain subject to change until the final audit
opinion is issued and delegated authority to the Assistant Director Parks
and Leisure, Simon Ingyon in consultation with the Chair of the Committee,
to approve any changes to the 2023/24 Financial Accounts, Annual Report
and the management representation letter required as part of the finalisation
of the audit process.

5. LAW ENFORCEMENT TEAM REPORT

Alfie Kerrigan (Advisor to the Trust) presented the Law Enforcement Team (LET)
Report, covering the following points:

From 15t April to 27" November 2024, 1,536 interactions had been
conducted on Wormwood Scrubs. 29 Fixed Penalty Notices had been
issued for breach of the Responsible Dogs Ownership Public Space
Protection Order (PSPO). Two community protection warnings had been
issued to dog walking companies for breach of the PSPO.

Community protection notice had been issued to one of these companies.
Breach of this notice would result in additional fixed penalty notices being
issued and legal proceedings being taken. The Safer Neighbourhood Police
team had been informed about this and they would act and enforce
accordingly.

Other engagements taken place across Wormwood Scrubs included the
removal and dispersal of recent rough sleepers. There was no traveller
encampment lately, which was helped by the implementation of electric
bollards on Scrubs Lane.

The patrols would continue from the LET Day and Night teams with future
and new operations being conducted to target antisocial behaviour on
Wormwood Scrubs area and surrounding locations. Clare Willis had recently
taken over as the other Senior Law Enforcement Officer.

Faye Thomas (Co-opted Member) asked what the penalty was for breaching the
community protection notice. Alfie Kerrigan replied that it would result in legal
action being taken, and the court could impose a fine up to £20,000. lan Baron

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 5



(Advisor to the Trust) added that the community protection warning would be
issued first, but if the dog walker continued to breach it, the LET would gather
evidence for issuing the Fixed Penalty Notice (FPN). The community protection
notice would be issued afterwards, and if it was breached, the case would be
referred to the legal team for taking legal action. This process could take a few
months to a year. The community protection warning notice, which was a form of
antisocial behaviour warning notice, stipulated that the person who did not comply
with the PSPO would be banned from entering all open spaces, or they would have
to obtain a dog walking license from Hammersmith & Fulham. If such a license
could be produced, the community protection warning notice would be reviewed for
allowing them back into the Scrubs and the borough.

In response to Councillor Bora Kwon’s question about when there could be an
evaluation of the success of PSPO, Alfie Kerrigan replied that the team would
collate some data and feedback to the Committee.

ACTION: Alfie Kerrigan/lan Baron

Simon Ingyon (Advisor to the Trust) added that the PSPO was signed in June 2023
and would be in place for three years. The first year was mainly about educating
the public on the responsible dog ownership issue. A review would likely happen in
2025, and a more formal one would take place in 2026 to investigate whether an
extension of the PSPO would be sought.

Stephen Waley-Cohen (Co-opted Member) noted that some professional dog
walkers were instructed to bring more than four dogs, which was beyond the limit
of the PSPO, and some individual dog walkers would walk together. He suggested
that licensed dog walkers should be reminded that they were not allowed to walk
their dogs together. lan Baron assured that when the LET saw that happen, they
would ask the dog walkers to separate and if they failed to comply, issue FPN to
them.

Stephen Waley-Cohen (Co-opted Member) was worried that the amount of fine
was not a sufficient deterrent. lan Baron responded that the LET would issue up to
three FPN before moving to issuing community protection warning notices and
formal notices.

Faye Thomas (Co-opted Member) raised the issue of dog walkers parking near the
unfenced play area on Braybrook Street, which was within the area where dogs
had to be on leads. Dogs would be released from the vans and run through the
area with small children, where dogs were not allowed. She asked if there was
anything that could be done to make dog walking companies understand which
area they should not be in, such as circulating a map. The Chair pointed out that
dog walkers’ compliance level varied and highlighted her support for installing a
fence around the play area.

Councillor Dominic Stanton enquired who an FPN would be issued to if the dog
walker was from a company. lan Baron replied that the FPN would be issued to the
company most of the time and a letter would be followed.

Stephen Waley-Cohen (Co-opted Member) enquired if it was possible to have a
higher fine for people who disregarded the dog walking rules. lan Baron said that

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 6



all FPNs were set the same depending on what amount the borough set. The
maximum fine was £1,000 but was currently set at £100 (£60 if paid within the
specified timeframe). The maximum fine was £1,000 if the case went to court. The
Chair agreed that this issue could be looked into further.

RESOLVED
The Committee noted the Law Enforcement Team Report.

6. MANAGER'S REPORT

HS2 funded Alternative Ecological Mitigation (AEM) Masterplan and
Procurement Strategy

Victoria Abel (Advisor to the Trust) gave an update on the planning application of
the Alternative Ecological Mitigation (AEM) Masterplan. The application was
submitted to OPDC in April 2024. It received a number of objections from local
people and Sport England. OPDC had concerns about the footpath connectivity
across the site and did not recommend approval of the planning application. The
Trust considered this with HS2 and decided to remove parts of the plan that
required planning permission, which were the borehole, pond and footpaths.
Improving access remains an important part of the plan and the Trust would
continue to work with stakeholders to co-produce footpath proposals next year,
while engaging with OPDC. This AEM Masterplan proposal included the
Sustainable Urban Drainage System (SUDs) made up on a large scrape, tree and
shrubs planting, meadows and grasslands creation and Hibernacula’s bird and bat
boxes, which will be managed by a 10 Year Management and Maintenance Plan.

Stephen Waley-Cohen (Co-opted Member) welcomed these changes on behalf of
the Friends of the Wormwood Scrubs but would like to have more discussion with
the Trust on the precise location of the SUDs due to concerns of them blocking
footpaths. Victoria Abel assured that the SUDs were quite small and shallow and
could be relocated if the direction of travel around the stadium changed.

Councillor Dominic Stanton expressed that it was a shame that a large part of the
masterplan which had been under discussion for a long time was being discarded
and wondered if this decision was being near-sighted. Victoria Abel said that it took
a while for OPDC to decide if planning permission was needed and with the
objections lodged the planning process would have taken at least 9 to 12 months.

Councillor Dominic Stanton followed up by asking what would happen if the
masterplan was not approved. Mark Raisbeck (Advisor to the Trust) believed that it
would be a shame if the Trust did not press ahead with what could be pressed
ahead with quickly. Work could progress quickly if the masterplan was being
approved by the Committee, and the elements which required planning permission
could be explored and pursued separately.

Councillor Dominic Stanton requested that if it could be noted that the Committee
was only approving part of the new masterplan.

The Chair said that it was possible, adding that she was incredibly disappointed in
the new masterplan particularly as residents had come to her saying that they
would want a path network but had not been able to voice that publicly. She

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 7



proposed approving the masterplan in two tranches—first with the work that did not
require planning permission and then exploring how to deliver the access
improvements.

Victoria Abel assured that the footpath and signage would be looked at early next
year and the Trust would co-produce a proposal for a network of footpaths with
stakeholders including the Friends of Wormwood Scrubs and the hospital.

Simon Ingyon noted that this was not the whole masterplan for the whole Scrubs
but was only in relation to the HS2 works. Alternative ecological mitigation had
been led predominantly by the HS2 works on the Scrubs and it was crucial that
some of the work could be done soon to ameliorate the effects of HS2 and
increase ecological baseline. It was also noted that due to legislative changes on
biodiversity net gain, some parts of the original plan, such as the pond, could not
be counted as part of the ecological mitigation of HS2 since those features would
have come from planning but not HS2. This was the other reason why those
elements were removed from the current plan, but those features and
infrastructure would come back into plans in the future.

Councillor Dominic Stanton asked about the effective date of the legislative
change. Simon Ingyon replied that the requirement to demonstrate an increase in
biodiversity net gain came into effect in February 2024, which was during the
discussion with HS2. Councillor Dominic Stanton expressed his dissatisfaction with
the time and effort wasted on the initial masterplan.

Faye Thomas (Co-opted Member) noted that the Alternative Ecological Mitigation
Fund predated HS2 having lodged any interest in the Scrubs. The Fund was
granted for the damage HS2 had done to the Scrubs elsewhere on the line.

Mark Raisbeck believed that the work which was done was not wasted but
frustrating and it would be pragmatic to move forward with what could be
proceeded with. The value of other elements was being recognised and the Trust
should do their best to explore them.

Stephen Waley-Cohen (Co-opted Member) agreed that they should press on with
the work to get the benefits of the fund and expressed that the Friends of the
Wormwood Scrubs would still be objecting to the pond and the footpaths.

The Committee approved the AEM masterplan and procurement strategy of the
AEM masterplan.

HS2 — Future of the UTX Site

Osama EI-Amin reported on the negotiations with HS2 to gain clarity over their
intentions around the UTX site. HS2 had been unable to demonstrate whether the
land was ‘surplus to requirement’ and would need to be retained, or not. In the
absence of that clarity, the Trust had come into an agreement with HS2 which
stipulated that the Trust would be told when it became clear whether the land was
‘surplus to requirement’ and the negotiation would be restarted. The agreement
would protect the Trust’s ability to claim compensation for the land up until 2036,
given that the Old Oak Common station construction was due to be completed by
2033. It was also agreed that the material value of the land would not change,

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 8



which would protect the Trust from having to pay an inflated price if it was required
to buy it back. The preference of the Trust was to repatriate the land for its
charitable use, without paying a fee to the Secretary of State.

Faye Thomas (Co-opted Member) enquired if it was possible for the Council to
issue a statement on this on the Council’s website. Osama EI-Amin replied that the
Council would issue a comprehensive message to all residents about the
relationship between the Council and HS2, which would also include the Trust.

Faye Thomas (Co-opted Member) also asked about the legal agreement for the
value of the land. Osama EI-Amin responded that compensation could be claimed
up until 2036 and the material valuation would not change. The UTX site was
valued at about £160,000 in 2021, which would be the figure to be considered in
the future. Should HS2 need the land, the Trust would have the right to claim
compensation from the Secretary of State. The Trust had made it clear that they
would be happy to manage the wayleaves and easements for utility companies to
access the land. HS2 had to clarify which of the utility diversions had to be
permanent, which of them could be rediverted underneath the roadway, and if it
was possible for the Trust and the Council to manage agreements with those that
needed access to the site. This consideration is key to resolving the issue of land
ownership.

Faye Thomas (Co-opted Member) followed up by asking if HS2 would be paying
the same price if the site was needed for other purposes. The Chair replied that it
would be very complicated as it would require a different planning permission from
OPDC.

The Committee noted the update.

HS2 — Temporary diversion of Old Oak Common Lane via Wormwood Scrubs
UTX site

Osama EI-Amin updated the Committee on the HS2 proposal about a temporary
road diversion of Old Oak Common Lane into their UTX site for a period of three
years, to be commenced in October 2025. The Trust was working with HS2 to
obtain more details, which could be expected in February 2025. The diversion
would enable traffic to continue flowing while contractors excavated and diverted
utilities under the roadway. All of them would be diverted into the UTX site but
some of them would be diverted back underneath the roadway once the station
was more complete.

Officers were working closely with HS2 to ensure that the mitigation was thought
through. The Trust would ensure that any spillage of any light construction installed
was maintained and done according to the Highways Act and drainage considered
carefully. HS2 was considering another environmental impact assessment, and the
Trust would review any updated impact statement and mitigation.

Faye Thomas (Co-opted Member) asked if any tree was being fell as part of the
work. Osama EI-Amin replied that no tree was to be affected. All work would take
place on the UTX site, which had no vegetation.

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 9



The Chair noted that while the situation was not ideal, it was difficult for the
Committee to have much influence over the decision.

Faye Thomas (Co-opted Member) also asked if the redirection would affect public
traffic. The Chair said that this was a rerouting separate from the longer-term road
closures, which Osama EI-Amin agreed. Mark Raisbeck added that the Old Oak
Common Lane Road closure would begin in 2026. The temporary diversion was to
allow the traffic to flow while excavation work was being done on Old Oak
Common Lane. The duration of the full road closure was still to be discussed with
HS2, and announcement could be expected next spring.

The Committee noted the update.
KAAZ2 Secondary school site — License extension

The Committee was asked to approve an extension to the license with the central
government, covering the KAA2 temporary school site on Wormwood Scrubs, for a
further 12 months. Osama EI-Amin explained that the terms of the agreement
would remain the same with a 3.26% uplift (RPI for the previous 12 months) on the
license fee. This uplift would bring the revised license fee to £30,648 per month.
Officers were working with the Ministry of Defence to understand its intention
around exercising their access rights to the Scrubs, particularly to the military
parade area where the school is located, and whether an extension to the planning
application could be expected.

Councillor Dominic Stanton asked how far in advance would an extension be made
typically. Osama EI-Amin replied that central government was considering applying
for an extension. They could apply for one up to three months before the end of the
licensing period. It depended on the capacity level of OPDC, and the Trust was
working with central government to ensure that any extension was coordinated,
which they would bring to the Committee as soon as possible.

The Committee approved an extension to the KAA2 license to occupy the parade
ground.

Grounds maintenance contactor performance: April — August (Q1, Q2, Q3)
and priority tasks to complete from January 2025 — March 2025

Osama EI-Amin provided an update on the ground’s maintenance contractor
performance. They had demonstrated a commitment to improving standards
across the Scrubs. There had been a steady improvement in performance on the
Scrubs since the meeting in March. Out of the 45 performance failure items which
needed to be rectified, 36 of them had been completed with the remaining 9
scheduled to be completed by the end of the calendar year, except for the Scrub
and bramble management work, which would likely finish by the end of February
2025. In Q1, contractors were penalised £2,500 for the performance failures which
had escalated due to inaction for a considerable period of time.

Gully cleansing had been taken off the contract, which offered £540 saving. The
Trust was working with Highways colleagues to come up with a regime of gully
cleansing with one of the contractors of the Council. A round of cleansing was due

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.
Page 10



in January and officers had contacted the KAA2 site contractors to make sure that
their gullies were cleansed soon.

The Committee noted the update.
Ecological baseline reporting and accessibility audit recommendations

Ecological Baseline Survey

Victoria Abel (Advisor to the Trust) provided an update on the Ecological Baseline
Survey. The study found that the Scrubs was already a haven for wildlife and
species found in the Scrubs included slow worms, common lizards, noctule bats
and nightingales. The habitat types identified at the Scrubs were scarce in central
London. The monitoring needed to continue in order to assess the future
improvements of the Alternative Ecological Mitigation Masterplan. The Committee
was asked to approve £9,000 for the survey to be conducted annually.

The Chair enquired if the surveys had to be annual. Victoria Abel replied that
annual surveys were needed in the first three to five years to measure the impact
of the masterplan and could progress to being biennial afterwards.

The Committee approved the funding for the Ecological Baseline Survey.

Accessibility Audit

Victoria Abel gave an update on the accessibility audit that was carried out on the
Scrubs in August 2024 by the Centre for Accessible Environments. The audit set
out a list of short-, medium- and long-term recommendations based on guidance in
accordance with the Equalities Act 2010 and best practise guidelines on the design
of accessible environments.

Noting that the Friends of the Wormwood Scrubs had a discussion with officers the
previous week, Stephen Waley-Cohen (Co-opted Member) expressed caution
about some of the recommendations and believed that the recommendations did
not consider the ‘more wild than tamed’ nature of the Scrubs. The Friends would
draft a response as soon as possible.

The Chair highlighted that the 1879 act stipulated that the Wormwood Scrubs was
for residents of London, including about 15% of them with accessibility needs.
Ensuring that everyone had access to open space was important. She was
supportive of the recommendations and looked forward to seeing them being
implemented.

Referring to the consultation which took place for the masterplan, Osama El-Amin
pointed out that the footpath and the general accessibility features were co-
produced under the auspices of the specialist firm. Consultation on these features
had already begun and the Trust would make sure they listen to a wide range of
voices.

Councillor Dominic Stanton praised the recommendations of the accessibility audit,
citing that he noticed some areas to be quite challenging when he was using a
wheelchair to access the Scrubs last year.

The Committee noted the update.

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.
Page 11



Wormwood Scrubs meadow LNR, next steps

Victoria Abel (Advisor to the Trust) updated the Committee on the next steps
towards establishing the Wormwood Scrubs Meadow Local Nature Reserve (LNR),
located in the northwest of the site and was currently being maintained by Idverde
with the help of volunteers. Areas of bramble and cherry plum trees had
encroached into the meadow areas and needed to be managed to allow
diversification of more varied plant species. Work was currently on site and would
continue over the winter months.

Public consultation on declaring the meadow area an LNR was live on the ‘Have
Your Say’ webpage until 18 December. More than 100 responses had been
received already and the overwhelming majority were positive and in favour of the
LNR. The Trust was monitoring postcodes of respondents to assess the reach of
the consultation. The data collected would also be shared with Natural England
ahead of more formal consultation happening next year. The declaration of an LNR
would not affect future access improvements or things like benches and signage
being installed.

Stephen Waley-Cohen (Co-opted Member) highlighted that the Friends had long
suggested that the area should be an LNR and were in support of this proposal.

The Committee noted the update.
Linford Christie Capital programme

Simon Ingyon (Advisor to the Trust) provided an update on the work of the Linford
Christie Capital programme. The northern changing block had been demolished,
the slab had been retained and temporary portacabins had been brought in to
enable participants of both the grass pitches and the Scrubs to use toilet facilities,
shower and change. These would likely be operational at the start of next year. 18
cabins had been brought in to provide for the sports users which would be open
soon.

Phase two of the programme would include a new community room, a kitchenette
and a café, which would be brought forward at a future date. Reprovision and
redesign of the artificial grass pitches would also be considered in phase two.
Officers had worked on a revised scheme with Kensington Dragons Football Club
(KDFC) after the initial one was deemed unaffordable. The revised pitch provision
will include one 11-a-side 3G artificial grass pitch leased to KDFC, two 7-a-side
artificial grass pitches and three tennis/netball courts. The work on resurfacing and
relaying of the athletics track would begin in spring 2025.

The Committee noted the update.

Cafe development at Linford Christie Stadium

Osama EI-Amin provided an update on the café at Linford Christie car park.
Planning colleagues advised that in order to issue a permit for a coffee van

operator, the terms of the car park would have to be changed, which would affect
the Trust's ability to generate income. The Trust had identified that the current

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.
Page 12



community room area could potentially fit a café and officers were assessing how
to refurbish the space and the costs at the moment. A proposal would be
developed in consultation with local users, license holders and internal teams
before reporting back to the Committee.

Councillor Domonic Stanton enquired about what happened with the agreement
with Thames Valley Harriers Athletics Club. Osama EI-Amin replied that initially the
Trust offered a £40,000 grant donation to help with the capital cost of
reconstructing their clubhouse, including a café space. The current priority was the
resurfacing of the athletic tracks and discussion about the clubhouse would
happen afterwards.

Stephen Waley-Cohen (Co-opted Member) expressed that the current café
proposal would benefit the public even more than the plan with the Harriers
Athletics Club.

The Committee noted the update.
Outdoor learning on Wormwood Scrubs

Osama EI-Amin provided an update on the pilot programme of outdoor learning on
Wormwood Scrubs. The initial community partner was unable to progress under
some unexpected circumstances, so the current partner delivering the programme
was Urbanwise Ltd.

The programme was currently being delivered as an after-school club with Old Oak
Primary School children. There was some support from the school with two Forest
School-trained teachers. The community centre served as a space for children to
debrief after their sessions. Amazing feedback had been received from the children
and parents. Data would be collected after the final session and the Trust would
consider how to raise funds externally to make it a year-round programme,
complemented with some guided nature walks and other volunteering events on
the Scrubs. Outdoor learning would be a part of the offers that would be available
on the Trust’s website to be developed in 2025.

The Chair asked about the date of the final session, to which Osama El-Amin
replied was to be the week after.

The Committee noted the update.
Braybrook play area re-design

Osama EI-Amin updated the Committee on re-designing the Braybrook play area,
noting that the accessibility audit recommended improving some of the
accessibility features in the play areas. Two proposals had been received from
contractors. One of them was not very appropriate while the other was very
expensive. With the permission by the Chair, the Trust had engaged a design
company to produce a new design. The concept design was now being considered
by the Parks team, working with local stakeholders to decide the best equipment to
be put in place. The Trust was still exploring how to fence off the area. The Trust
maintained access to £66,000 Section 106 funding and additional budget could be

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.
Page 13



considered next year. Officers were working towards giving the Committee an
update next March.

Faye Thomas (Co-opted Member) was interested to be involved in the discussion
on equipment alongside some other local parents. The Chair agreed that it would
be a good idea.

The Committee noted the update.
Green flag mystery shop results

Osama EI-Amin provided an update on the Green Flag mystery shop results. The
Green Flag accreditation was run by Keep Britain Tidy, an environmental charity,
based on 8 different criteria. Two mystery shops would happen every year and the
last one for the Wormwood Scrubs came back with positive results, except for one
point about better accessibility into the play area.

The Committee noted the update.
Artillery lane remedial works and future resurfacing

Osama EI-Amin updated on the Artillery Lane remedial works. Due to the cold
weather and the time needed for the tarmac to secure itself properly, the
resurfacing of the entire roadway could be done when the temperature was hotter.
The potholes had all been made safe for now. It was important that the Trust
worked closely with the prison, the hospital and anyone who used that road to
make sure their access needs were not hindered. The resurfacing would take
place at a time which was going to be the least inconvenient for everyone, hence
the high costs. The Chair approved the £55,000 funding outside of Committee in
line with the Committee’s Terms of Reference given the urgency of the works.

The Chair added that the road surface had improved and the drive along the road
was relatively smooth now. She asked if lighting improvements had been
considered. Osama EI-Amin replied that it could be included in the work package.

ACTION: Osama El-Amin

Councillor Dominic Stanton asked if anything was being done with the narrow
entrance to the car park. Osama EI-Amin noted that there were many potholes and
cracks in the car park, and they had been included in the work package. The entire
entrance to the Wormwood Scrubs car park to the Artillery Lane would be
resurfaced. Regarding the C27 cycle path, the Trust was working with Transport
for London to understand how they intended to improve it moving forward.

The Committee noted the update.
WSCT Q3 Financial Performance and comparison to year end

Kellie Gooch (Advisor to the Trust) provided an overview of the WSCT Q3
Financial Performance, covering the following points:

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.
Page 14



The net budget for the Trust this year was a deficit of about £69,000,
assuming spend of around £1.3 million and income of around £1.2
million.

A deficit was forecasted because a number of major spend items had
been deferred.

The forecast at Q3 was a surplus of around £36,000 overall, a slight
improvement from Q2 due to continued upturn from parking income.

The Trust was overachieving against budget on income from interest,
with the year-end forecast to be around £68,000 better than what was
budgeted.

Spend was forecasted to be broadly in line with the budget.

An update on the spend of a few items would be given once their plans
were confirmed.

Incorporating the cash balances from 2023/24 and the forecast surplus
for the current financial year, the Trust could expect £7.2 million funds at
the end of the financial year, of which £2.2 million was available in cash
balances.

The Committee noted the update.

RESOLVED
The Committee:

1.

8.

9.

Approved the final version of the HS2 (High Speed 2) funded Alternative
Ecological Mitigation (AEM) Masterplan scheme.

2. Approved a procurement strategy for the AEM Masterplan project.
3.

Noted the future freehold interest of the HS2 UTX site, acquired via
compulsory purchase by HS2 Itd.

Received an update on the planned diversion of Old Oak Common Lane
through the HS2 UTX site.

Approved an extension to the KAA2 license to occupy the parade
ground.

Received an update on the Q1, Q2 and Q3 performance of our Grounds
Maintenance contractor and note upcoming maintenance activities.

. Noted the highlights of an Ecological baseline survey and approved the

cost of continuing this work, along with approving the recommendations
of an accessibility audit.

Noted the next steps towards establishing the Wormwood Scrubs
Meadow Local Nature Reserve (LNR).

Received an update on the Linford Christie athletics stadium capital
programme.

10.Noted on developing a cafe space on the LCS site.

11.Noted an update on Outdoor Learning on Wormwood Scrubs.

12.Noted the re-design of Braybrook play area.

13.Received results of the annual Green Flag mystery shop.

14.Noted emergency rectification works on Artillery Lane and future

roadway re-surfacing.

15.Noted WSCT Financial performance and comparison to year end.

7. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The Committee noted the date of the next meeting scheduled to be held on 18™"
March 2025.

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 15



Meeting started: 6.33 pm
Meeting ended: 8.24 pm

Chair

Clerk: Tiffany Yip
E-mail: tiffany.vip@Ibhf.gov.uk

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.
Page 16


mailto:tiffany.yip@lbhf.gov.uk

Agenda Item 4

MANAGERS REPORT

Report to Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Committee

Report Author: Contact Details:
Osama El-Amin, Charitable Trust Osama.el-amin@Ibhf.gov.uk
Manager

Simon.ingyon@Ibhf.gov.uk

Simon Ingyon, Head of Parks and Open
Spaces

Executive Summary and Decisions Sought
The Committee is asked to:

1. Approve the appointment of MHA as the Trust’s external auditor for the accounting
year 2024/25 and approve their proposed fee of £11,700 (+VAT).

2. Note an update on procuring the HS2 (High Speed 2) funded Alternative
Ecological Mitigation (AEM) Masterplan scheme.

3. Note progress towards co-producing access improvements on the open space.

4. Receive an update on the Q4. Grounds Maintenance performance and note
upcoming maintenance activities in Q1. 2025/26.

5. Approve additional grounds maintenance contract payments for Years 3 — 5 to
ensure continued performance over the remainder of the contract term ending in
January 2027.

6. Approve a £40K budget to re-surface the multi-use games area behind Old Oak
Community Centre.

7. Note WSCT Financial performance (forecast to year-end) and approve the
2025/26 financial budget.

8. Note the final steps towards designating the Wormwood Scrubs Meadow — Local
Nature Reserve

9. Approve a set of strategic themes for the Trust and work with officers to develop a
3-5-year strategic business plan.

10.Receive and update on the Linford Christie sports stadium capital programme.

11.Take note of the re-design of Braybrook play area.

12.Receive an update on Community Safety.

1. Appointment of Auditors

Page 17


mailto:Osama.el-amin@lbhf.gov.uk
mailto:Simon.ingyon@lbhf.gov.uk

The Trust is required to appoint an auditor for its 2024/25 accounts. The Trust has used
the services of the auditors MHA (formerly known as MHA Maclintyre Hudson) since the
audit of its 2019/20 accounts. Subject to approval by the Committee, MHA have
provisionally agreed to undertake the audit of the 2024/25 Trust accounts and have
provided a quote of £11,700 (+VAT) for this work. It is recommended that the quote
provided by MHA is approved as it is only a modest increase from the 2023-24 fee of
£11,500 (+VAT). There would also be significant work involved in changing audit provider
(given various release protocols and onboarding requirements). During their time as
auditor, MHA have built up a strong understanding of the Trust’s accounts as well as
constructive relationships with Council Finance staff. The Committee is asked to approve
the appointment of MHA as the Trust’s external auditor for the accounting year 2024/25
and their proposed fee of £11,700 (+VAT)

Committee to approve.

2. Procuring the AEM Masterplan

The AEM Masterplan procurement process is progressing but has been delayed due to
several issues. Firstly, it was decided that the capital and maintenance (MMP) work
required separate contracts so additional time was needed to work with colleagues in
legal to draft the additional High Value Contract for the MMP work and amend the JCT
contract for the capital work. Also, the Pricing Schedule was not approved before the
Procurement Regulations changed at the end of February, which has since been
approved.

With the new Procurement rules in place one of the main procurement documents - the
ITT (Invitation to Tender) will need to be completed in a new template to reflect the new
legislation. The new ITT document is currently being reviewed by Legal officers, with
indication that this should be ready by the end of March. Once the final version is available
it will be completed and updated to include a new procurement timetable. All other
procurement documents required for the tender have been finalised.

As the AEM Masterplan is one of the highest value procurement exercises underway in
the Council and the new regulations are likely to require additional steps such as ‘market
testing’ to the initial programme, the procurement process will take a minimum of 9
months from the contract notice advertised on the portal. Officers are hoping to
commence that process in April 2025. Further progress updates will be provided at
subsequent committee meetings.

Committee to note.

Page 18



3. Wormwood Scrubs Open Space — co-producing access
improvements

In approving the final version of the AEM Masterplan scheme in December 2024, this
committee resolved to prioritise implementation of the ecological capital works, followed
by a second phase of access improvements. That second phase involves building on
consultation feedback procured via Land Use Consultants (LUC) and The London
Development Trust (LDT) and co-producing a set of access improvements with multiple
stakeholders. Those exercises identified — footpaths and signage as key material
improvements that will enhance participation on the Scrubs.

Officers have begun working with the Council’s - inclusive environment resident disability
group for an in-depth view of the second phase and how those improvements speak to
the needs of disabled people. Officers have also identified and approached 50 groups
ranging from; the MET Police design out crime team, to estate tenants and hospital
staff/patient groups. So far Officers have noted mixed views on the extent of formal
footpaths on the Scrubs. Some respondents cite fears over the rise of anti-social
behaviour and creation of ‘blind spots’ along with more positive reception to the idea of
enhancing access for less able individuals. The operational necessity of some access
routes will be prioritised to ensure successful maintenance of new ecological elements
introduced via the AEM Masterplan. In reference to the access audit recommendations
and a recent green flag inspection, the play areas will also maintain higher priority in this
scheme, as any equipment in these areas needs to retain year-round access.

A budget of £100K has been allocated in 2025/26 to facilitate access improvements.
Officers will continue to engage, procure feedback and work to develop a detailed
proposal aimed at formalising some of the existing desire lines, educating users and
serving the maintenance needs of the Scrubs. Officers hope to share a plan in summer
2025.

Committee to note.

4. Q4. Grounds Maintenance - contractor performance in Q4. 2024/25.
Upcoming activities in Q1. 2025/26.

Idverde have continued to maintain a satisfactory performance on the ground's
maintenance contract across 2024/25. Performance failures have largely been rectified,
with the only major outstanding item being the lack of scrub and bramble management
undertaken in the first two years of the contract and some ongoing concerns about the
guality of maintenance within Linford Christie stadium. Officers have agreed to increase
the rate of shrub and bramble clearance in the final two years to compensate for previous

Page 19



years. This will work will continue to be led by Ecologists and performed in a manor
congruent with the needs of our habitats.

Since the Linford Christie site is undergoing considerable work, the area of space to be
maintained on the contract has temporarily reduced, giving operatives more time to
ensure horticultural and amenity features are maintained to the high quality expected,
sports fields are appropriately managed, and ecological works are prioritised.

Q1. 2025/26 will see the following grounds maintenance taking place on-site:

Main Site: April —June 2025

Cleansing 1. Litter picked. 2. Benches cleaned. 3. Bins cleaned
and emptied — Daily AM.

Horticultural 1. Shrub beds weeded, pruned and edged once a

Features month. 2. Shrub beds fertilised once in April.

Sports/Play Area’s 1. Line marking once a week. 2. Grass cut once a
month. 3. Defects inspected, isolated and reported
daily.

Grass 1. Grass pitches cut once a month. End of sports

Cutting/Maintenance season renovations, summer sports season
preparations.

Hard Surfaces 1. Daily sweep. 2. Dally litter picking. 3. Daily graffiti
removal. 4. Weeds removed 5 days per week.

In addition to the above, weekly volunteering and community payback sessions will
continue to be delivered via the RSPB Ecology and Community Officer. In January 294
hours of volunteering were recorded on the Scrubs. Officers are awaiting similar data for
February and March. That information will be used to inform further targeted eco-
volunteering sessions in 2025/26. Throughout Q1. Those sessions will include — dead
hedging, forest school maintenance, litter picking, selective thinning of saplings in the
woodland, along with group habitat survey sessions and bird walks.

Committee to note.

5. Grounds maintenance contract fee increase

Idverde Ltd deliver the grounds maintenance contract for 3 contract LOTs in the borough.
The first relates to Parks, Highways and Cemeteries. The second relates to Housing
works and the third maintaining Wormwood Scrubs. Due to sustained inflationary
pressure felt by idverde, LBHF senior leadership in consultation with Housing and
Wormwood Scrubs Officers approved a 3.51% uplift to the value of all 3 contract LOTS
for Contract Year 2. Officers have seen some improvements on other contract LOTs since
approval of the uplift. LOT 3 is outperforming other contract LOTs, with albeit a much

Page 20



smaller footprint compared to LOTs 1 and 2. On the basis of this improved performance,
the committee is asked to approve the consolidation of the increase in Year 2 for the
remaining contract years, plus an additional 6% - £18K from Year 3 and 2.96% - £9k from
Year 4, of for the remainder of the contract. This reflects the additional cost of inflation
above that allowed for in Idverde’s tender. This is the same reason an annual payment
was agreed for year 2 that has also been annualised and agreed corporately for the Parks
and Housing contract LOTSs.

Committee to approve.

6. Old Oak Family Hub — multi use games area (MUGA) re-surfacing

After discussions with Peabody Housing Association concerning the poor state of the
multi-use games facility (MUGA) which is located behind Old Oak Community centre,
officers secured the deed of transfer held on the land register. On 18" May 2021, a deed
of transfer between the Trust and the Council concerning the Old Oak Community Centre
was completed. That deed excluded the MUGA. Subsequent leases have maintained the
same red line boundary. In effect, this facility remains a Trust asset. The condition of the
playing surface is below standard, with multiple tears and fire damage to the carpet.
Officers have secured quotations from playing pitch contractors to re-surface the pitch
with the existing surface type, or 3G standard. The quotes submitted range between £22K
- £35K excluding contingency fees. The facility maintains open access and is very popular
with local children. Considering this, officers propose to keep the facility open until 6pm
in the winter, 8pm in the spring and 9pm in the summer. A padlock with a key code will
be installed on the gate, with access given to LET officers, hub staff, grounds
maintenance supervisor and the Chair of the Old Oak resident's association. This
committee is asked to approve a £40K budget to re-develop the artificial pitch, secure the
facility and maintain the newly laid surface.

Committee to approve.

Page 21



7. WSCT Financial performance: Year-End forecast and 2025/26
budget

The Q4 2024/25 financial forecast for Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust (“the Trust”)
for 2024/25 is summarised in the table below and detailed in Annexe 1. Financial
transactions for the financial year to date (April 2024 to 28" February 2025) are set out
in Annexe 2.

Forecast Variance
Outturn Outturn Outturn Outturn Budget Comparison to Last Reported
202021 202122 2022123 202324 202425 202425 2024125 2023/24 Outturn ETILIES %) LT
Q4) (Q4)
£ £ £ £ Budget  Forecast £ £
Pay & Display and cashless parking income budget is set at
Pay and Display Meters & the conservative rate of £360,000 per annum. This is £25,986
. 212,757, 312,739, 301,509, 385,986 (360,000; (418,957, 58,957 7% -9% . (400,214) 18,743
Cashless Parking ¢ ) ¢ ) ¢ ) ¢ ) ( ) ¢ ) ( ) B less than the 2023/24 outturn. Favourable variance relates to ¢ ) ( )
actuals in each month April 2024 to February 2025
Hammersmith Hospital Car Forecastis £114,603.37 per quarter (Q1-Q3 in line with
. 353,547, 362,467, 391,983 438,757, (460,705, (460,706, 1 -5% -5% . (460, 706; 0
Park Licence ( )¢ )¢ | ¢ | ¢ )| ¢ ) @ B B signed agreements) plus Q4 forecast of £116,895.44 ¢ )
Forecast is income from Kensington Aldridge Academy
(£356,160); Pony Centre (£13,500); UKPN rent (£3,446);
Other |ncome from activities (331,286) (394,099) (389,797) (464,662) (395,998) (464,198) (68,200) 15% 0% Fllmlng income (£10,000); and |nveslmen‘l income (£81,092 - (464,198) o
for generating funds (bank interest £80,000 plus £1,092 rental income)).
Favourable forecast is due to increased bank interest
(£65,000) and filming income (£3,200).
Grant Income 0 0 (173,572)] (14,255) [o] 0f [0 No approved grants at Q4 0l 0
Total Income and
Ko (897,590)  (897,590) (1,256,862)| (1,303,659)| (1,216,703)| (1,343,860) (127,157) % -3% (1,325,118) (18,742)
Forecasted spend is Planned Grounds Maintenance cost
Grounds Maintenance 769,767 739,981 411,757| 476,806 445,762 435,580 (10,182) -7% 9%  [(£351,467), Non Routine maintenance (£70,000), plus share 451,344 (15,764)
of governance costs (£14,113)
Coqtrlputlon t.o Linford 63,174 170,253 64,258 65,657 64,867 65,110 242) 1% a% Forecast is fixed annual contribution of £63,000 plus £2,110 64,851 250
Christie Stadium (LCS) share of governance costs.
Kensington Dragons contribution (£47,500); Scrubs school
(£11,370); materials & equipment £32,408; mapping software
Other Expenditure 15,209 66,679 310,969) 24,388 705,302 101,141  (604,161) 2792% 315% |(£3,994); Ecological survey (1,570); Donation to Friends group| 710,269) (609,128)
(Dog Show - £672); electricity (E350), plus governance costs
(£3,277).
Trust Manager - Strategic . . -
Governance Review 0 0 43,052 61,461} 70,000) 63,000 @.000 100% | 100% ;:AZSIS associated with Wormwood Trust Charitable Trust 63,000 0
implementation nager
Total Expenditure 848,151 848,151 830,036/ 628,312 1,285,931 664,831]  (621,100) 105%] 6% 1,289,464 (624,633)
(679,029) 48 ]

The budget for 2024/25 was agreed with an anticipated net expenditure outturn of
£69,228. The current forecast at Q4 is a net income outturn of £679,029; a favourable
variance of £748,257 compared to budget. This forecast includes £29,207.53 GM
contract inflation (Section 4 Approval item).

Forecast movement (Q3 comparison: -£643,375): Income movement (-£18,742) is the
increase in parking pay and display and cashless parking income. The expenditure
reduction (-£624,633) is due to high value projects being delays until 2025/26, including:
Linford Christie Stadium (LCS) investment (-£250,000); Kensington Dragons contribution
(-£202,500 — the value of the likely 2nd claim is to be confirmed); Play area improvements
(-50,000); and depot and resurfacing projects (-£100,000).

Income Forecast 2024/25 (Q4)

The 2024/25 income forecast is £1,343,860. This is £127,157 more than budgeted
(£1,216,703): -£58,957 is due to better than budgeted car park performance; the
forecasted increases in interest on Trust funds (-£65,000) and Filming income (-£3,200).

Page 22



Forecasted pay & display and cashless parking income (P&D) is £418,957. This is based
on actual income between April 2024 and February 2025, and an estimate for March 2025.
Forecasted Hammersmith Hospital Car Park income - This currently matches budget as
is £460,706, as 4" quarter has Retail Price Index (RPI) is to be confirmed.

Other income is forecasted at £464,28, which includes: £356,160 annual rental income
payable by KAA for the temporary site; £13,500 Pony Centre income; £10,000 Filming
and events income from ad hoc filming assignments and events; £3,446 annual rental
income payable by UKPN for occupation of the Scrubs land for the electric vehicle
charging points (the agreement continues until 24th March 2026); and £81,092 estimated
investment income from the bank balance and lodge.

Expenditure Forecast 2024/2025 (Q4)

The 2024/25 expenditure forecast is £664,831 (£645,331 direct costs + £19,500
governance costs), which is £621,100 (£605,600 direct and £15,500 governance) less
than budgeted (£1,285,931).

Governance Cost — These are variable cost comprising of Audit, Legal and Finance
support to the Trust; budgeted at £35,000. The current forecast is only £19,500 due to
reduced legal costs. The forecast governance costs have been apportioned as follows:

Budgeted Forecasted Governance

2024/25 Q4 Forecast (at February 2025) Direct Direct costs Total
£ £ £ £
Grounds Maintenance (contract) 332,931 351,467 11,769 363,236
Contribution to Linford Chrsitie Stadium 63,000 63,000 2,110 65,110
Non Routine Maintenance 100,000 70,000 2,344 72,344
Other exepnditure 685,000 97,864 3,277 101,141
Strategic Governance Review implementation 70,000 63,000 - 63,000
Total 1,250,931 645,331 19,500 664,831
Grounds Maintenance (GM) forecast: £435,580 — Includes both planned routine

maintenance (forecast: 351,467, inclusive of inflation and client fees) and non-routine
maintenance (forecast: £70,000). 72% of the governance costs (£14,113.29) are
allocated to GM.

Non-routine maintenance: (£70,000) — including general resurfacing and minor works.

Contribution to Linford Christie Stadium forecast: £65,110 — Governance costs, totalling
£2,110 have been apportioned to this fixed cost of £63,000.

Other expenditure forecast: £101,141 (including £3,277 governance costs) — has been
significantly reduced since Q3 as the capital investment have either not started or just
recently commenced. Managers are confident that all delayed projects will now be
completed in 2025/26.

Budgets for these delayed to projects have been rolled forward to the 2025/26 budget.
The costs included in the 2024/25 forecast are the Kensington Dragons contribution
(E47,500 claimed. A second claim is likely at the end of March, but the value is uncertain.

Page 23



The 2025/26 budget will be reduced by the resultant claim amount); Scrubs school
(E11,370); materials & equipment (£32,408); mapping software (£3,994); Ecological
survey (1,570); Donation to the Wormwood Scrubs Friends group (Dog Show - £672);
and electricity (£350).

Committee to note.

Financial Year 2025/26 Budget

The proposed budget for Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust (“the Trust”) for 2025/26 is
summarised below along with details of movements and assumptions.

Forecasted Proposed

Activity Outturn Budget
2020/21 2021/22 2022/123 2023/24 2024125 2025126

Forecast
2026127

Outturn Outturn Outturn Outturn

Pay and Display Parking Meters (212,757) (312,739) (301,509) (324,945) (418,957) (400,000) (410,000)
Hammersmith Hospital Car Park Licence (353.547) (362.467) (391,983) (433.285) (460,706) (469,920) (484,017)
Other income from activities for generating funds (331,286) (394,099) (389.797) (369,966) (464,198) (471,121) (441,121)
Grant Income (173,572)

Total Incoming Resources from Generated Funds (897,590)|  (1,069,304)| (1,256,862) (1.128,196)| (1.343.860) (1.341,041)  (1,335,138)
Grounds Maintenance 769.767 739,981 411,757 443,008 435,580 477,494 472,412
Contribution to Linford Christie Stadium 63,174 170,253 64,258 66,178 65,110 64,033 66,138
Other Expenditure 15,209 66,679 310,969 219,544 101,141 1,131,460 262,451
Project Manager - Strategic Governance Review implementation 0 43,052 70,000 63,000 70,000 71,400
Total Resources Expended 848,151 976,912 830,036 798,731 664,831 1,742,988 872,400

Net Incoming Resources (92,392) (426,825) (329,465) (679,029) 401,947 (462,738)

The proposal is for a 2025/26 net expenditure budget of £401,947. Income is budgeted
at £124,338 more than the current 2024/25 budget. Expenditure is £457,057 higher than
the 2024/25 budget, mainly due to the proposed investments.

Proposed Income Budget 2025/26
The proposed 2025/26 income budget is £1,341,041. This is £124,338 more than 2024/25
budget (£1,216,703) and £2,820 less than the current 2024/25 forecast (£1,343,860).

The Pay and Display and Parking Meters budget is increased by £40,000, from £360,000
to £400,000 as income has improved since the introduction of weekend parking. The
Hammersmith Car Park Licence budget, at £469,920) is set based on the current
forecasted quarterly rate plus a 1% uplift is forecasted for Quarter 4 (January to March
2026). This is £9,215 more than the 2024/25 budget (£460,705).

The budget for other income (471,121), which is increased by £75,123 compared to the
2024/25 budget (£395,998), includes: £363,283 forecasted annual rental income payable
by KAA for the temporary site; £13,500 Pony Centre income; £3446 annual rental income
payable by UKPN for occupation of the Scrubs land for the electric vehicle charging points
(the agreement is due for renewal by 24th March 2026); ; £9,600 income from ad hoc
filming assignments and events; and £81,092 estimated investment income from the bank
balance and lodge. £65,00.00 of the budget increase relates bank interest, which has
been significantly higher since the interest rates increases.

Proposed Expenditure Budget 2025/2026

Page 24



The proposed 2025/26 expenditure budget is £1,742,988, which is £457,057 higher than
the 2024/25 budget (£1,285,931). This includes previously approved major capital
improvement works, alongside new proposals, so exceeds the income budget by
£401,947. Expenditure is planned as far as possible, with priority being given to essential
works.

Excluding the fixed Grounds Maintenance contract sum (£321,588, i.e. £284,730.96
contract plus £36,857 inflation) and the annual Linford Christie Contribution (£63,000), all
costs are estimated. These other 2025/26 expenditure budget items include grounds
maintenance client charges; non-routine maintenance; improvement projects; surveys
and items agreed in the 2024/25 budget but not implemented in 2024/25.

The budget for governance costs, apportioned to expenditure budgets based on value, is
£27,000. This estimate includes audit, legal fees, and finance support.

The table below summaries the budget changes:

Forecast Changes

Approved  Revised Proposed
Budget Budget
Budget

Budget Budget Budget Forecast

Budget Budget
0122 0122 2022123 2023124 2024125 2025/% 2026127

2019/20 2020721 Notes

(281,611) (345,428)  (345,428) (345,428) (300,000) (324,945) (324,945) (360,000) (400,000)

Pay and Display & Cashless Parking (63,817) 45 428 45428 45428 (24,945) 0 (35,055) (40,000) (10,000) 1
(345.428) (300,000)  (300.,000) (300,000) (324,045 (324,945) (360.000) (400,000) (410,000)
(336,109) (348,178)  (353,547) (353,547 (360,619) (381,413) (433,285) (460,705) (469,920
{11,686) (5,947) (7,072) (7,072) {20,794) {51,872 (27,420 {9,215 {14,098) 2
(347.795) (354.126)  (360.619) (360.619) (381.413) (433,285) (460.705) (469.920) (484.017)
(138.341) (147,341)  (321,038) (321,038) (330,814) (346.668) (369,966) (395,998) (471,121)
{9,000 (173,697) (9,776) (9,776) (15,854) (23,298) (26,032) (75,123) 30,000 3

Hammersmith Hospital Car Park
Licence

QOther income from acfivities for

generating funds
(147.341) (321.038)  (330.814) (330.814) (346.668) (369.966) (395.993) (471.121) (441.121)
699,994 723535 749,365 749,365 315731 315,731 332931 369,788 345,000
40,180 26,264 974 974 100,000 106,000 100,000 100,000 105,000
Grounds Maintenance 740,174 749,799 750,339 750,339 415,731 2173 432931 469788 450,000 4

22,187 2149 24520 20,965 15,033 a2’ 2@t 708 22412
762360 771949 774859 771304 430764 443008 445762 477494 472412
31,500 61500 61500 61500 61500 63,000 63,000 63,000 63,000
31,500 61500 61,500 61500 63,000 63,000 63,000 63,000 63,000
944 1817 2010 1718 2278 3178 1867 1033 3,138
32444 63317 63510 63218 65278 86.178 64.857 64,033 66.138
29,000 35000 35000 35000 190270 220598 209000  705302| 500,000
29,000 35000 45000 190270 220588 209000  685000( 1.113200] 250,000
869 1034 1471 5,316 7977 10544 20302 18260 12,451
29,859 36034 46471 195586 208575 219544 705302 1.131460 262451
75,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000

2712 70,000 70,000 70,000 71400 7

75,000 75,000 11712 70,000 70,000 70,000 71.400

24,000 25000 28000 28,000 28,000 35,000 35,000 27,000 38,000
(240000  (25000) (28000)  (28.000) (28000 (350000  (35.000) (27,000 (30,000 8

Confribufion to Linford Christie Stadium

Cther Expenditure

[=>]

Trust Manager - Strategic Governance
Review implementation

Governance costs (Audit & Legal &
Finance)

The following table provides details of the proposed 2025/26 budget:

Page 25



Notes

1. Pay & Display and cashless parking income budget is proposed at £400,000 (based on the average of the average of 2023/24 actual and
2024/25 forecasted income).

2. Agreed inflationary increase from Q4 2024/25 to be carried forward for Q1-Q3 2025/26 (@ £457,581.75 annually). Contracted increase
for Q4 2025/26 based on contractual indices s estimated at 2%.

3. The budget for KAA income is set at £363,283 (12 months @ £30,273.60). Filming/Events income is set at £9,800 as it is assumed to be
earned after the KAA occupation (2026/27 onwards). Other items include Pony Centre (£13,500); UKPN (£3,446 - Contract renewal due on
25th March 2026); and Investment income (£81,092)

4. Grounds Maintenance includes the contract costs w.e.f. 1st February 2022 @ £284,730.96 (criginal fixed fee) and £48, 200 (variable
client fee @ 11% of estimated cost of FParks team). Plus non-routine maintenance (£100,000), including trees, fencing and other ad hoc
health and safety works. Every effort is being made to plan ad hoc works and to keep expenditure at a minimum. APPROVAL item 4.
£36,357 inflation (included in the £92,000 request).

5. Currently a fixed contribution (£63,000) to Linford Christie Stadium towards pressures on maintenance (including minimising legionella
risks and providing fully operational changing rooms, lighting equipment, etc.).

6. This 2025/26 budget anticipates non-maintenance related costs and investments:

A) Linford Christie Stadium Projects:

- Kensington Dragons Pitch re-surfacing project (£202,500) - Includes £100,000 rolled over from 2023/24 plus £150,000 to bring the 2024/25
contribution to the previously agreed £250,000; less sum paid in 2024/25 (£47,500)

- Athletics Infrastructure improvements (£250,000), which brought forward from 2023/24 to match the funding provided by the Council
(£250,000 - Kings Coronation Youth Fund),

- Cafe at Linford Christie Stadium (150,000)

- Dog exercise area (£10,000) - this item requires consulfation before it can be formally recommended to the committee.

B) Other Projects and investments:

- Depot and Grounds Maintenance improvements (£50,000) - This is contribution to the costs overall costs that will be incurred by the
Councif;

- Artillery Lane Grounds resurfacing project (55,000) - Repairing the tarmacadam, covering the areas from the edge of KAA to the depot and
around the corner of the Pony Centre;

- Play Area Improvements (£150,000) - equipment, orientation and fencing - initial consultation completed. Next steps and further features
requires further consultation; and Old Oak Multi-Use Games Area (MUGA - £40,000)

- Hammersmith Car Park Improvements (£10,000) - Approximately 15-20 parking spaces could be added. Vegetation would need to be
cleared and consultation with hospital and users required;

- Scrubs Outdoor School - Educational initiative (£10,000) - Ecology artist budget brought forward from 2023/24;

- Access Improvements (£100,000) - 50: 50 Signage (£50,000) and footpaths (£50,000)

- Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Communication (£5,000)

- Installation of CCTV on access road (£15,000); Options appraisal for Park Lodge (£20,000); and safety improvements (wooden fencing -
£20,000)

- Guided Nature walk (£10,000); Art Programme (£10,000) and Mapping Licence (£5,700)

7. Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Manager £70,000

8. Legal, audit and finance support costs are apportioned to the expenditure budgets as shown (£27,000).

Committee to Approve.

Page 26




8. Wormwood Scrubs Meadow — Local Nature Reserve (LNR)

Officers are pleased to share with committee members that Natural England have
accepted the LNR designation. The next step in the process is for the Council legal team
to seal the declaration. Once sealed a public notice of the declaration will be advertised
both online and physically. The physical notice will be displayed in Shepherds Bush library,
along with all LNR documentation. This notice will be in place for a period of 4 weeks.
The Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) will receive results of
that notice. If no major objections are received, the final designation will be communicated
to the Trust and the Council. In line with the access improvement scheme, funding to
improve signage in the meadow will form part of the 2025/26 budget. This committee is
asked to consider whether to host a celebration event for this new designation, or to await
completion of the AEM tender process and Linford Christie capital programme before
conducting a wider event to celebrate all the improvements made on the Trust estate.

Committee to note.

9. WSCT strateqy development and future planning

As the Scrubs and the wider Old Oak area enters a new era of development, officers have
spent time engaging with a plethora of stakeholders to build a view of how the imminent
changes are likely to affect the way the Scrubs is used and how the spirit of the act can
be maintained. The OPDC local plan maintains Wormwood Scrubs as the main area of
open space within the regeneration district. This fact, combined with the completion of
the HS2 station by 2033 will result in significant changes to the fabric of the
neighbourhood. Given these large interventions and the resulting shift in demographic
indices expected over the next decade, this committee is asked to spend time with officers
to develop a detailed strategic business plan, which formalises all the existing work
streams, while setting clear goals for the future. To support that process, the strategic
themes listed below can act as a framework for the Trust’'s charitable objectives, with
more detailed ambitions and action plan to be developed as part of the business plan by
the committee.

Ensuring sustainable access to recreation and exercise.

Preserving and enhancing the ecology of Wormwood Scrubs.

Fostering health and educational outcomes through community engagement.
Improving facilities and maintaining assets.

Delivering financial security.

a bk wbhE

Page 27



In engaging with local stakeholders, the themes stated above reflect the current use of
the Scrubs and the existing investment made by the Trust. These can be used as a
stepping stone to identify further changes and communicate a 3—5-year business plan
to the wider community.

Committee to approve.

10. Linford Christie Capital Programme

Changing room demolition and replacement — Demolition of the changing room block
was completed in early January 2025. The electrical substations have been maintained.
In demolishing the building, the paving slab beneath the building was found to be in
poorer condition than first envisaged. Contractors undertook to level the surface and
tarmac the remaining area which will host the community room. fourteen bespoke
portacabin units with changing rooms and toilet facilities have now been installed and
operational for two months. The final element of this scheme is the installation of the
community room, which will combine 4 of the same size portacabin units into 1 large
space. Utility connections and furnishings are expected to be complete by the end of
March. At which point the community room and additional spectator toilet facilities will
become available for hire. Planning permission for these temporary units is in place for
2 years. In that time, this committee and officers will liaise to secure a long-term solution
to the stadium site as a whole.

Artificial pitch re-surfacing — A 26-week work programme commenced on 20™ January
2025. At the time of submitting this report, the programme is on track, with the existing
assets having been stripped away and work to level the surface, construct the drainage
channels, establish a new foundation and erect a new boundary taking place until mid-
April. Officers are hoping to include the athletic track floodlighting improvements within
this scheme as this will offer a cost saving and enable faster completion of the capital
programme. In maintaining the current pace of work, this programme is due to be
completed by 215t July 2025.

Athletics track improvements - Alliance Leisure UK are the chosen framework delivery
partner to support the Trust and Council in procuring this improvement. Officers are
awaiting the legal documentation from Alliance to finalise a procurement report. Once
approved, an order can be raised and communication of a definitive work programme
sent to stakeholders. Given the existing supplier relationship between Hunts
(contractors delivering the artificial pitch scheme) and Polytan - the track surfacing
supplier, officers are working to ensure an order is raised promptly, to ensure that Hunts
can carry out this work while occupying the site to complete the pitch re-surfacing
scheme. Finally, officers are in close contact with the Thames Valley Harriers athletics
club to ensure inconvenience to club operations are minimised while the entire capital

Page 28



programme is delivered. The track work is set to 6-8 weeks, which will hopefully land
within the existing 26-week programme for the artificial pitch scheme.

Members will note the construction of hoarding around the perimeter of the site. This will
remain in place for the duration of the planning period. This committee is asked to
consider whether to commission local artists to create a mural or offer the space as a
designated graffiti wall.

Committee to note.

11. Braybrook play re-design

A brief to procure additional equipment in the Braybrook Street play area has been
circulated to the Chair for approval. Following this the budget to procure new play
equipment has been increased to reflect the desire to create a destination play park.

The brief is to procure an item of large scale, challenging and dynamic equipment for
older children (to be located at position 1 on the plan below) along with additional smaller
items of equipment for younger children including toddler swings (4 on the plan) and two
small pieces of equipment for imaginative play (5 on the plan). In addition, the increased
budget will fund play equipment to be installed where the existing posts are. (Location to
the southeast of 3 on the plan).

This scheme will include safety surfacing for the new equipment (7), along with delivery
and installation costs. The brief will specify that the equipment proposed is predominantly
wooden to fit in with the surroundings. The timetable for procuring the play equipment
will be agreed with colleagues in Procurement at the same time as the procurement
documents are being finalised.

Page 29



Low-level wooden fencing will be procured to enclose the southern part of the play area
which is predominantly for younger children (2 on the plan). Once new equipment is
installed in the northern play area, similar fencing (not shown on the map) will be installed
to delineate that play space.

A consultation from 2024 showed that 68.4% of respondents wanted to see a fence
around the play area to provide a safe, dog free environment for children and carers with
enough space to runaround and have picnics. The fenced area to the south will also
allow for more equipment to be added as and when funding is available as well as new
benches/picnic tables (indicated by 8&9 on the plan) and bins (6). The path from
Braybrook Street will also be extended towards the centre of the play area (3). Thisis a
recommendation of the Access Audit from 2024 and will greatly improve access for the

Page 30



less mobile and carers with buggies etc. A further update will be sent to committee in
June 2025.

This committee is asked to approve a budget of £198,300 to implement this scheme. If
approved, £150K will be apportioned from the 2025/26 budget, with the remaining
£48,300 secured via S106 funding.

Committee to approve.

12. Community Safety report

Date 28 February 2025

Classification Information

Title of report _
Service update

Report of Law Enforcement Team

Decision No

/Decision maker

Report author(s) Alfie Kerrigan

Law Enforcement Team Officers for your area: —

Alfie Kerrigan, Senior Law Enforcement Officer, Claire Willis, Senior Law
Enforcement Officer, Magdalena Niedzwiedz, Law Enforcement Officer, College
Park & Old Oak Ward, Raul Islas Law Enforcement Officer, College Park & Old
Oak Ward

Summary:

Page 31



This report outlines the role and works undertaken by the Law Enforcement Officers in
Wormwood Scrubs.

The Law Enforcement Team (LET) was launched in April 2021 following the

amalgamation of various teams, including the Neighbourhood Wardens, Parks Police,
Street Scene Enforcement and Highways Enforcement. The LET comprises 72
uniformed officers, and the service operates 24/7, 362 days a year.

The LET's main objectives are:

To support the Council's vision to be the best Council and deliver continuous
improvement for our residents.

To be the cleanest and safest borough.

To work in partnership with council services, residents, partners and external agencies
to develop a coordinated approach to solving issues and increasing resident
satisfaction.

To support the Police and other partners to protect residents from anti-social behaviour
and crime.

Tackle persistent issues, particularly in known hotspots in the borough.

Details of our work in and around WWS: 28th November 2024 — 28th February 2025

Issues No Comments

High Visibility 107 WWS woodland and Meadows, LCS gym, all cops,
Patrols Nature area, Dog exercise areas, play areas,
Braybrook Street

Weapon 8 No weapons found

sweeps

conducted

ASB patrols 70 General ASB patrols to discourage unauthorised

activities causing nuisance

Dog Issue/ 43 With joggers, users, Hospital workers, drivers, gym
PSPO users, users of Linford Christie Stadium. Ongoing

PSPO education, feedback from walkers regards
Engagement/

awareness on

} . licence via sportshooking@Ibhf.gov.uk
wider issues

provisions for dog walkers if now being asked to hold a

Littering 0 FPN issued for littering offence

Page 32


mailto:sportsbooking@lbhf.gov.uk

Issues No Comments

Dogs PSPO 0 FPNs issued for breach of Responsible Dogs

Enforcement Ownership PSPO

Community 0 Two known dog walking companies were previously

. served a CPW and a CPN in 2024.

Protection

Notices/

Warning

Highways 0 No reports or engagements of highway offences

offences

Advice given 7 During the engagement with wider users of WWS,
advice was offered on various issues

Waste issues 2 Fly tipping incidents investigated and removed

Dog fouling 1 During the patrolling duties, officers reported 1 dog

incidents fouling incidents for removal

lllegal 0 No lllegal encampments (tents) located and removed

encampment

Abandoned 0 No abandoned vehicles reported or witnessed.

Vehicle

locking duties | 58 Yellow gate off Scrubs Lane and checking height
barrier on Artillery Lane.

TOTAL 296 Various interactions

Since issuing a Community Protection Notice Warning to a known dog walking
company and a Community Protection Notice to another prominent dog walking
company who would actively carry out their business on Wormwood Scrubs, we have
seen a reduction in Public Space Protection Order ‘dog’ related offences being
committed.

How to contact the LET:

We are aware that residents and resident groups will want to know their ward officers,
and we are committed to ensuring that this happens. It is important that our ward
officers know as much about their ward as possible and that residents are essential to
assisting us with this knowledge.

Page 33



If you would like to meet with the Seniors or the ward Officers on-site to undertake a site
visit around WWS, please email oldoakcollegepark northwards@Ibhf.gov.uk or the
team seniors at Claire.Willis@I|bhf.gov.uk / Alfie.Kerrigan@Ibhf.gov.uk

To contact the LET, via telephone please call 020 8753 1100 (option 3 then option 1)
and via LET.HF@Ibhf.gov.uk. When you contact us, your enquiry is logged and
allocated to a ward officer. Ward officer will contact you with updates and arrange to
meet or speak with you etc. Old Oak & College Park ward has now a dedicated email
address which is oldoakcollegepark northwards@Ibhf.gov.uk

The team website be accessed here - https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/crime/law-
enforcementteam

Committee to note.

Page 34


mailto:oldoakcollegepark_northwards@lbhf.gov.uk
mailto:Claire.Willis@lbhf.gov.uk
mailto:Alfie.Kerrigan@lbhf.gov.uk
mailto:LET.HF@lbhf.gov.uk
mailto:oldoakcollegepark_northwards@lbhf.gov.uk
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/crime/law-enforcement-team
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/crime/law-enforcement-team
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/crime/law-enforcement-team
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/crime/law-enforcement-team
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/crime/law-enforcement-team
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/crime/law-enforcement-team
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/crime/law-enforcement-team

Annexe 1: Financial Forecast
WORMWOOD SCRUBS CHARITABLE TRUST
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2024/25 - Unaudited
| Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust

|Statement of Financial Activities for Year ended 31 March 2025

2024125
Income and Expenditure WSCT HS2 2023124 Notes
Forecast
£ £ £ £
[Income and endowments from: |
Donations and legacies
Income from Charitable activities:
Pay and Display Parking Meters (418,957) 0 (418,957) (385,986)  Parking income is recovering and is atits highest level
Hammersmith Hospital Car Park Licence (460,706) 0 (460,706) (438,757)  Contracted lease payments are expected to increase by inflation (RPI)
) o Includes income from the KAA, UKPN charging points, Pony Centre and
Other trading activities (383,106) 0 (383,106) (378,596) flming income.
Income from Investments (81,092) (81,092) (86,065)  Interest on cash balances and rental income from the park lodge.
Income from donations and grants 0 0 (14,255)  HS2 Ltd and GLA grant funding
[Total Income and endowments | 34380 | 0 (1,343860) | (1.303659) |
[Expenditure on: |
Raising funds 0 0
Charitable activities:
Contribution to Linford Christie Stadium 65,110 65,110 65,657 Contribution to Linford Christie Stadium plus proportion of governance costs.
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs 72,344 72,344 123,649 Expenditure on noroutine grounds maintenance plus proporton of
governance Costs.
Routine Grounds Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs 363,236 363,236 353,157 CG;;US nds Maitenance contracted spend plus proportion of governance
Other expenditure 101,141 101,141 24,388 Projects and major works
Direct Staff 63,000 63,000 61,461  Strategic governance review implementation
Surveys and Studies 0 0
Charitable expenditure 0 0 0 0 HS2 Ltd
[Total Expenditure | eeas3t | 0 664831 | 628311 |
Net gains/(losses) on investments
|Net (income)lexpenditure | (679,029) | 0 (679,029) | (675,347) |
[Reconciliation of Funds |
Total funds brought forward (7,133,141) 0 (7,133,141) (6,457,795)
[Total funds carried forward | @e121700 | o 7812471) | (7.133141) |

Allincome is unrestricted.

Page 35




Annexe 2: Financial Transactions

Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Transactions (1st April 2024 to 28th February 2025)

(500,759.94)
Activity Comments Amount £

- - -

Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 4,511.25
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 4,511.25
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 4,511.25
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 4,511.25
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 4,511.25
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 4,511.25
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 4,511.25
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 4,511.25
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 5,692.50
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 4,642.50
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 4,642.50
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 517.95
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 517.95
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 517.95
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 517.95
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 517.95
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 517.95
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 517.95
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 517.95
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 680.96'
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 536.06!
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 536.06
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 550.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs SUPPLY OF POLYHEMPE ROPE - FOREST SCHOOL 790.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WWS - ORDER AND INSTALL GATES ON 2,450.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WORMWOOD SCRUBS - PHASE 2 OF THE SWALE 970.56
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WORMWOOD SCRUBS - REMEDIAL ACTION ON 1,317.45
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs LNDN & KENT AIR CONDITIONING HLP031054 9005283881 - Depot 360.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs SUTTON PROEJCTS HLP031185 9005244147 - Depot 2,076.00
Routine Grounds Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WSCT GM INFLATION 01/02/23 TO 31/03/2023 68,512.75
Routine Grounds Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WSCT GM CONTRACT 01/04/23 TO 30/06/2023 11,754.16
Routine Grounds Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs GM CONTRACT - WSCT (Q2 24/25) 73,090.97
Routine Grounds Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs GMCLIENT COSTS - STAFF TO Q2 2024/25 10,952.61
Routine Grounds Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs GM CONTRACT - WSCT (Q3 24/25) 73,090.97
Routine Grounds Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs GMCLIENT COSTS - STAFF TO Q3 202425 9,841.19
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs ACCRUAL 2023/24 WSCTO01 UK POWER NETWORKS 92202658 -10,998.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs ACCRUAL 2023/24 WSCTO5 DRAYON FENCING 24/15875 CRE -1,590.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs ACCRUAL 2023/24 WSCTO01 RED SQUIRREL19944 CREDITOR -1,782.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs ACCRUAL 2023/24 WSCT0O5 FM CONWAY 9005037138 CREDIT -111.76
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs PLANTING ORD 63077- TRANSPLANTS WS UTCF 1,782.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WORMWOOD SCRUBS - SCRUBS LANE; CAR PARK 1,590.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs SCRUBS LANE (W12) - CABLING WORKS TO 10,988.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WORKS ORD 81102, TREE WORKS, SCRUBS 4,097.30
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs TATMAC MP LIMESTONE FOR BMX TRACK 1,257.40
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WORMWOOD SCRUBS -BMX SECURE BOARDS TO 140.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WORMWOOD SCRUBS -GYM - RE SECURE LOOSE 12.50
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WORMWOOD SCRUBS -GYM - RE TENSION LOOSE 12.50
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WORMWOOD SCRUBS -GYM- SUPPLY AND FIT 55.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WORMWOOD SCRUBS -PLAYBUILDER - DISMANTLE 145.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WORMWOOD SCRUBS -PLAYGROUND - SMOOTH OFF 88.50
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WORMWOOD SCRUBS (BRAYBROOK PLAYGROUND. 107.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WORMWOOD SCRUBS (BRAYBROOK ST)-SAFETY 45.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs SUPPLY AND INSTALL OF ANEW TRAFFIC 1,629.56
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WORMWOOD SCRUBS-GYM RING. HAND GRABS AND 310.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WORMWOOD BRAYBROOK PLAY- TIMBER MULTI 658.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WORMWOOD SCRUBS-BOLLARDS. RESET APPROX. 1,540.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WORMWOOD SCRUBS BRAYBROOK 5 STATION 105.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs SUPPLY OF 6X TREES TO RED SQUIRREL 634.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WORMWOOD SCRUBS- LC GYM MISSING BOLLARD 200.00

Page 36



Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Transactions (1st April 2024 to 28th February 2025)

(500,759.94)
Activity Comments Amount £

- - -

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WORKMWOOD SCRUBS-BARK RETAINER 2ND 433.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 1,017.40
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs SUPPLY OF 2X SIGNS FOR WORMWOOD SCRUBS 318.24
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs SUPPLY AND INSTALL OF ANEW TRAFFIC 525.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WORMWOOD SCRUBS - SCRUBS LANE ENTRANCE, 692.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs 21517 INTERNAL RECHARGE ON BRAYBOOK STREET 448.72
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs PRS/24719 WORMWOOD SCRUBS REPAIR CAR 280.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs 06/09/2024 B&Q MARKETPLACE 45.83
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs IDV01134- CR 1245 SUPPLY AND SPREAD 60 3,425.52
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WWS - BRAYBROOK PLAYGROUND RE-DESIGN 17,692.65
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WWS - BRAYBROOK PLAYGROUND RE-DESIGN (8,846.32)
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WORMWOOD SCRUBS - 2 TOWER MULTI UNIT 2,425.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WORMWOOD SCRUBS-TIMBER PLAY STRUCTURE. 221.50
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs WORMWOOD SCRUBS - SIGN REPLACEMENT TO 646.90
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs IDV001152- 60 TONNES OF 80:20 SANDY LOAM 4,249.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs GREEN FLAG APPLICATION 2025 WORMWOOD 430.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs ORD 81107, WORMWOOD SCRUBS ADHOC Tw24 450.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs 51060602630RD 81005 ORD 81104 TwW24 99.00
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs 51061524480RD 81005 ORD 81104 TwW24 1,690.00
Other Expenditure WORMWOOD SCRUBS - TO CONDUCT FULL NICEIC 350.00
Other Expenditure WWS - AEM POSTERS 60.00
Other Expenditure WWS - AEM POSTERS -10.00
Other Expenditure TMS ACCESS SIGNS AND LABELS 155.00
Contribution to Linford Christie Stadium Contribution to Linford Christie Stadium 63,000.00
Direct Costs staff related Staff and Volunteer Travel Expenses 179.58!
Other Expenditure WWS STORAGE FOR OUTDOOR LEARNING 1,099.00
Other Expenditure WWS - BOLLARDS, EXTRAKEY CARDS 698.00
Other Expenditure SUPPLY AND INSTALL X4 LED ANSELL 3,997.20
Other Expenditure WWS - AXVISITOR AND USER REPORTS 2,995.00
Other Expenditure 10 SITE SUBSCRIPTION TO ACTIVE XCHANGE 999.00
Other Expenditure TOPOCREW QUOTATION REFERENCE: 651.95
Other Expenditure WWS OUTDOOR LEARNING - PROJECT OPERATOR 6,930.00
Other Expenditure TO CARRY OUT APRELIMINARY ECOLOGICAL 1,570.00
Other Expenditure WWS OUTDOOR LEARNING - PROJECT OPERATOR 4,440.00
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 92.33
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 93.76
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 4.78
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 4.84
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 4.88
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 5.11
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 3.72
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 1.96
Direct Costs staff related Wormwwod Scrubs Manager Direct Costs 1.89
Other Expenditure GRANT FUNDING TO DELIVER FOWWS DOG SHOW 672.00
Governance Costs - Legal Legal fees 28.80
Governance Costs - Legal Legal fees 222.00
Governance Costs - Legal Legal fees 7.20
Governance Costs - Legal Legal fees 7.20
Governance Costs - Legal Legal fees 7.20
Governance Costs - Legal Legal fees 108.00!
Governance Costs - Legal Legal fees 272.00
Governance Costs - Legal Legal fees 110.00
Governance Costs - Legal Legal fees -110.00
Governance Costs - Legal Legal fees 201.60
Governance Costs - Legal Legal fees 10.00
Governance Costs - Legal Legal fees 7.20
Governance Costs - Legal Legal fees 86.40
Governance Costs - Legal Legal fees 79.20
Governance Costs - Legal Legal fees 60.00
Governance Costs - Legal Legal fees -60.00
Governance Costs - Legal Legal fees 14.40
Governance Costs - Legal Legal fees 14.40
Governance Costs - Legal Legal fees 160.00!
Governance Costs - Legal Legal fees 36.00
Governance Costs - Legal Legal fees 460.00
Governance Costs - Audit ACCRUAL-WSCTO03-AUDIT FEE 2023/2024-CREDITOR -11,500.00
Governance Costs - Audit WSCT 2023-24 ACCOUNTS AUDIT FEE 2,000.00
Governance Costs - Audit WSCT 2023-24 ACCOUNTS AUDIT FEE 7,000.00
Governance Costs - Audit WSCT 2023-24 ACCOUNTS AUDIT FEE 2,500.00

Page 37



Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Transactions (1st April 2024 to 28th February 2025)

(500,759.94)
Activity Comments Amount £

-

Other trading activities WORMWOOD SCRUBS PARKING INC APRIL2024 VAT -36,175.71
Other trading activities WORMWOOD SCRUBS PARKING INC MAY2024 VAT -37,042.67
Other trading activities WORMWOOD SCRUBS PARKING INC JUNE2024 VAT -36,104.04
Other trading activities WORMWOOD SCRUBS PARKING INC JULY2024 VAT -35,212.79
Other trading activities WORMWOOD SCRUBS PARKING INC AUG2024 VAT -31,520.12
Other trading activities WORMWOOD SCRUBS PARKING INC SEPT2024 VAT -33,821.21
Other trading activities WORMWOOD SCRUBS PARKING INC OCT2024 VAT -40,336.96
Other trading activities WORMWOOD SCRUBS PARKING INC NOV 2024 VAT -36,069.58
Other trading activities WORMWOOD SCRUBS PARKING INC DEC 2024 VAT -30,458.87
Other trading activities WORMWOOD SCRUBS PARKING INC JAN 2024 VAT -37,027.46
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs INVOICE 10880298 IDVERDE TREES & SCRUBS REIMBURSEM (220.00)
Other trading activities FILMING AT W. SCRUBS Q1 24/25 - OWL FILMS -8,368.73
Other trading activities FILMING ON WS 29/04/2024 SIMON WALDOCK LTD -136.25
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs 1030007452-T TRADING LTD LIMESTONE REIBURSEMENT_05 (1,107.40)
Other trading activities CHARING CROSS HOSPITAL CAR PARK PERIOD: 25/03/2024 TO 23/06/2024 -114,603.37
Other trading activities CHARING CROSS HOSPITAL CAR PARK PERIOD: 24/06/2024 TO 28/09/2024 -114,603.37
Other trading activities CHARING CROSS HOSPITAL CAR PARK PERIOD: 29/09/2024 TO 24/12/2024 -114,603.37
Other trading activities KENSINGTON ALDRIDGE ACADEMY RENT: APRIL 2024 -29,680.00
Other trading activities KENSINGTON ALDRIDGE ACADEMY RENT: MAY 2024 -29,680.00,
Other trading activities KENSINGTON ALDRIDGE ACADEMY RENT: JUNE 2024 -29,680.00,
Other trading activities KENSINGTON ALDRIDGE ACADEMY RENT: JULY 2024 -29,680.00
Other trading activities KENSINGTON ALDRIDGE ACADEMY RENT: AUGUST 2024 -29,680.00
Other trading activities KENSINGTON ALDRIDGE ACADEMY RENT: SEPTEMBER 2024 -29,680.00
Other trading activities KENSINGTON ALDRIDGE ACADEMY RENT: OCTOBER 2024 -29,680.00
Other trading activities KENSINGTON ALDRIDGE ACADEMY RENT: NOVEMBER 2024 -29,680.00,
Other trading activities KENSINGTON ALDRIDGE ACADEMY RENT: DECEMBER 2024 -29,680.00,
Other trading activities KENSINGTON ALDRIDGE ACADEMY RENT: JANUARY 2025 -29,680.00
Other trading activities KENSINGTON ALDRIDGE ACADEMY RENT: FEBRUARY 2025 -29,680.00
Other trading activities KENSINGTON ALDRIDGE ACADEMY RENT: MARCH 2025 -29,680.00
Income from Investments ACCRUAL-WSCT06- RENTAL INCOME 2024-25 (LODGE)-PREP -273.00
Income from Investments LODGE RENTAL INCOME - JULY 2024 TO SEPTEMBER 2024 -273.00
Income from Investments LODGE RENTAL INCOME - OCTOBER 2024 TO DECEMBER 2024 -273.00
Income from Investments LODGE RENTAL INCOME - JANUARY 2025 TO MARCH 2025 -273.00
Other trading activities ACCRUAL-WSCTO06- RENTAL INCOME 2024-25 (PONY CENTRE -3,375.00
Other trading activities PONY CENTRE - PERIOD: 24/06/2024 TO 28/09/2024 -3,375.00
Other trading activities PONY CENTRE - PERIOD: 29/09/2024 TO 24/12/2024 -3,375.00
Other trading activities PONY CENTRE - PERIOD: 25/12/2024 TO 24/03/2025 -3,375.00
Other trading activities UKPN RENT 2024/25 @ £3446 P.A. -3,446.00
Trust normal transactions -642,109.02
Direct Costs staff related Development Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 4,258.25
Direct Costs staff related Development Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 4,258.25
Direct Costs staff related Development Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 4,258.25
Direct Costs staff related Development Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 4,258.25
Direct Costs staff related Development Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 4,258.25
Direct Costs staff related Development Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 4,258.25
Direct Costs staff related Development Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 4,258.25
Direct Costs staff related Development Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 4,258.25
Direct Costs staff related Development Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 5,439.50
Direct Costs staff related Development Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 4,389.50
Direct Costs staff related Development Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 4,389.50
Direct Costs staff related Development Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 483.04
Direct Costs staff related Development Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 483.04
Direct Costs staff related Development Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 483.04
Direct Costs staff related Development Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 483.04
Direct Costs staff related Development Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 483.04
Direct Costs staff related Development Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 483.04
Direct Costs staff related Development Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 483.04
Direct Costs staff related Development Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 483.04
Direct Costs staff related Development Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 646.05
Direct Costs staff related Development Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 501.15
Direct Costs staff related Development Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 501.15
Direct Costs staff related Development Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 877.19

Page 38



Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Transactions (1st April 2024 to 28th February 2025)

Direct Costs
Direct Costs
Direct Costs
Direct Costs
Direct Costs
Direct Costs
Direct Costs
Direct Costs
Direct Costs
Direct Costs

Activity

staff related Development
staff related Development
staff related Development
staff related Development
staff related Development
staff related Development
staff related Development
staff related Development
staff related Development
staff related Development

(500,759.94)

Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs

Governance Costs

Direct Costs
Direct Costs
Direct Costs
Direct Costs
Direct Costs
Direct Costs
Direct Costs
Direct Costs
Direct Costs

staff related Development
staff related Development
staff related Development
staff related Development
staff related Development
staff related Development
staff related Development
staff related Development
staff related Development

Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs

Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs
Governance Costs

HS2 transactions

Comments Amount £
- -
Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 877.19
Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 877.19
Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 877.19
Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 877.19
Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 877.19
Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 877.19
Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 877.19
Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 1,120.53
Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 904.23
Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 904.23
UPDATED BNG CALCULATION RE WWS 7,165.00
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS FEES FOR WORMWOOD 100.33
FINANCIAL WORK TO ESTIMATE COSTS FOR THE 7,000.00
DESIGN WORMWOOD SCRUBS POSTER - ROUND ONE 180.00
DESIGN WORMWOOD SCRUBS POSTERS FOR CONSULTATION 150.00
CPO ADVICE IN RESPONSE OF HS2 SCHEME AT 5,481.67
CPO ADVICE IN RESPONSE OF HS2 SCHEME AT 6,154.00
NON INTRUSIVE UXO SURVEY OF SOUTHERN 5,850.00
NON INTRUSIVE UXO SURVEY OF SOUTHERN 2,450.00
WORK ASSOCIATED WITH THE PLANNING 18,810.00
WORK ASSOCIATED WITH THE PLANNING -5,850.00
ADDITIONAL WORK FOR THE WORMWOOD SCRUBS 31,770.00
ADDITIONAL WORK FOR THE WORMWOOD SCRUBS -12,960.00
Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 4.86
Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 4.94
Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 4.78
Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 4.84
Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 4.88
Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 5.11
Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 3.72
Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 1.95
Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager direct costs 1.89
MARCH 15-31 LEGAL TIMECHARGE FILE NO. 40002105 597.60
P1 LEGAL TIMECHARGE FILE NO. 40002105 561.60
MAY LEGAL TIMECHARGE FILE NO. 40002105 561.60
P3 LEGAL DISBURSEMENTS FILE NO.40002105 18.00
JUNE LEGAL TIMECHARGE FILE NO.40002105 417.60
P4 LEGAL TIMECHARGE FILE NO.40002105 144.00
P4 LEGAL TIMECHARGE FILE NO.40006228 7.20
P5 LEGAL TIMECHARGE FILE NO. 40002105 50.40
P5 LEGAL TIMECHARGE FILE NO. 40006527 7.20
P6 LEGAL TIMECHARGE FILE NO.40002105 14.40
P6 LEGAL TIMECHARGE FILE NO.40004490 21.60
P8 LEGAL TIMECHARGE FILE NO.40004490 36.00
2016 AEM AGREEMENT -39,348.78
AEM LUC PLANNING FEE'S -17,144.25
AEM MASTERPLAN - UXO SURVEY COSTS -8,300.00
ACCRUAL-WSCTO04 LEGAL FILE-AA (SEWER) 2023-24-HS2-D 1,320.60
ACCRUAL-WSCTO04 LEGAL FILE-AEM 2023-24-HS2-DEBTOR 1,330.00
ACCRUAL-WSCTO04 LEGAL FILE-CA (CPO) 2023-24-HS2-DEB 307.20
ACCRUAL-WSCTO04-ARCHITECTS-LUC 062231-HS2-DEBTOR 9,878.92
ACCRUAL-WSCT04-BEVAN BRITTAN LLP 2021/22-HS2-DEBTO 1,344.00
ACCRUAL-WSCT04-ENGINEERS COMPUND BOUNDARY 2020/21- 1,047.80
ACCRUAL-WSCT04-LAMBERT SMITH HAMPTON 2021/22-HS2-D 14,999.00
ACCRUAL-WSCT04-LAMBERT SMITH HAMPTON 2022/23-HS2-D 11,165.00
ACCRUAL-WSCTO04-LEGAL FILE NO. 40002032 2020/21-HS2 6,033.60
ACCRUAL-WSCTO04-LEGAL FILE NO. 40002032 2021/22-HS2 4,752.00
ACCRUAL-WSCTO04-LEGAL FILE NO. 40002105 2021/22-HS2 10,939.60
ACCRUAL-WSCTO04-LEGAL FILE NO. 40002105&2032 2022/2 2,037.74
ACCRUAL-WSCTO04-NEIL CAMERON QC 2021/22-HS2-DEBTOR 9,225.00
40002405 22/23 TRESPASS WORMWOOD SCRUBS -7.20]
141,349.08
-500,759.94

Page 39



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting
	4 Manager's Report

